SAME Industry Day Questions and Answers

Important note: In EVERY CASE, potential Offerors MUST follow the instructions in the solicitation.

1. Thirty days is a very tight turnaround time to prepare a quality proposal.  An increase in time will likely result in greater competition from the WERC09 contractors.   Will AFCEE consider allowing more than thirty days to submit a proposal?

ANSWER: The goal is to allow a minimum of forty-five (45) days from RFP release to proposal submittal for all PBRs.  Circumstances may require deviation from that goal, but the intent is to make that the norm as this initiative evolves. FY11 and the first portion of FY12 will be a challenge to achieve that norm but AFCEE is working to remedy that to the extent possible.

2. The number of sites in each PBR and number of background documents are overwhelming.  And we have only thirty days to submit a proposal.   For a small business, with multiple PBR proposals due at same time, when AFCEE posts background documents just before the proposal is due, that is not helpful.  Even posting one week before the due date is not very helpful unless it’s not a significant change from what was previously posted.   Will AFCEE reconsider how documents are posted?

ANSWER: Yes.  AFCEE intends to post documents on the file transfer protocol (ftp) website as early as the Request for Information (RFI). This will provide contractors with a draft of the proposed Statement of Objectives identifying the sites and performance objectives to be included, along with the background information on the sites.  FY11 and the first portion of FY12 will be a challenge to achieve that norm but AFCEE is working to remedy that to the extent possible.

3. Posting of documents on the website is a concern.  Posting one week before a proposal is due and the new documents require a redo of approach is not effective.  Also, AFCEE needs to find a way to notify the contractors when changes are posted.

ANSWER:  The website is the best way to notify contractors of changes and we will post the changes immediately upon availability.

4. The evaluation panel should consider page count commensurate to number of sites and the nine year duration.  AFCEE needs to either increase the page count or not come back with feedback about the lack of detail provided in the proposal.  

ANSWER:  AFCEE concurs.  The page count will be adjusted commensurate to the number of sites in fiscal year 2012 PBRs and beyond.

5. The level of effort that goes into a proposal (man time and financial investment) is hard to swallow.  Is there a way to streamline the process? 

ANSWER:  We continue to partner with industry through the use of Industry Days and will continue the practice in FY12.  We will also consider a partnering session to exchange ideas and methodologies.  

6. Will AFCEE consider a two step process in order to streamline the process?  

ANSWER:  The Government considered whether or not a two step process would provide value and determined this process is not in our best interest.  The two step process requires multiple evaluations, is resource intensive, and does not streamline the process. However, we will discuss this as part of our partnering efforts in future Industry Days

7. Will AFCEE consider an exclusion of some of the proposal requirements until after award of the task order?   AFCEE can exclude some things like the milestone payment schedule.  This could be negotiated after award which would lessen the burden on both sides and reduce costs of proposal prep.  

ANSWER:  Yes, however the milestone payment schedule may not be able to be waived.  Milestones proposed need to be seen in context of the Sub Contract Line Item (Sub-CLIN) for purposes of the restructuring Sub-CLINs prior to award.  If this information were to be omitted from the proposal, it would extend the award process to allow for this to be developed with the apparent successful Offeror.  

8. AFCEE PBRs are the highest resource intensive and cost proposal that industry sees.   AFCEE needs to find some way to avoid high cost on all of these.  That will drive competition up.     

ANSWER:  Refer to the response to #5.

9. AFCEE needs to streamline the RFP process to be easier for everyone.  Plenty of people would willing to partner with AFCEE and go through the process line by line and give recommendations of whether we need it or not.

ANSWER:  Refer to the response to #5.

10. I support the comment just made about partnering with contractors.  Communication is essential.  It is very important to get immediate feedback on proposals.  What makes a winning proposal?  Will AFCEE share the same level of information at the debriefing as they do for source selection debriefings?  Can AFCEE release the number of sites that the successful contractor proposed to close?

ANSWER: 1.  What makes a winning proposal?  Refer to specific RFP instructions and evaluation criteria.  2.  Yes.  3.  Yes.    

11. Some of the RFPs come out with unknown contaminants required and some RFPs do not.  How does unknown contaminant meet bona fide need requirement?

ANSWER: Active AF installation PBR projects do not include unknown contaminant requirements.  Currently, only BRAC installation PBR projects include unknown contaminant requirements.  There is no bona fide need issue associated with BRAC funds.

12. Multiple sites for each base and sometimes multiple bases with high dollar amount and nine year timeframe are difficult to predict.   There are obviously going to be some roadblocks along the way.  One of the issues is that the indemnification clause is daunting.   We got ¾ way through ($30K into it) and one team member dropped out.  The clause does not include “negligence” which means the contractor is responsible forever, even if they did a good job.  

ANSWER:   We thank you for your input and will consider this as we move forward with the FY12 program.     

13. If AFCEE removes the indemnification clause from future PBRs, will AFCEE also modify the FY11 contracts awarded to delete this clause?

ANSWER: There are no plans to remove the indemnification clause from the FY11 contracts.

14. How are lifecycle costs evaluated?  Recent SOOs put emphasis on LCC in evaluation criteria both inside and outside of POP.  Typically we have technical and cost proposals and they are usually kept separate.  Need to include what happens after POP in tech proposal.  Do we remove completely or separate into separate volume?  Hypothetically, SOO for multi site and multi installation and AF does good job to reducing LCC to diminish but SOO is “a la carte” and anything above what is being done will be above LCC.  On top of this may also have a ROM.  Common sense says the government did a pretty good job at reducing costs so how is tradeoff for cost to increase to site closure evaluated?

ANSWER:  Life cycle costs, as are all factors and sub-factors, are evaluated in accordance with the proposal instructions provided with the solicitation.  For LCC, this typically involves a review of costs for completeness and reasonableness.  Period of performance (POP) costs are not considered until after the technical evaluation of non-price factors and sub-factors has concluded. 

Alternatives that are low cost initially, but leave a large cost to be paid out over the years after the period of performance for the task order, may not be a good solution for the Air Force.  Offerors may be requested to provide an estimate of the remaining life cycle costs from the end of the period of performance until accelerated site closure [ASC] is achieved.  The information will serve as a means for the evaluation team to assess how well the Offeror understands the human health and environmental risks at the site and whether the proposed approach offers more or less value for the price when a trade-off analysis is conducted.  In essence, total life cycle cost is comprised of two elements: 1) price of the proposed approach that ensures protection of human health and the environment for the PBR task order solicitation; and 2) estimate of the remaining liability upon completion of the task order.  Under current practice, the first element is addressed in the Price volume of the proposal and assessed under that factor [Price].  The second element is addressed in the Technical volume of the proposal and assessed under that factor [Technical].  Important note: In EVERY CASE, potential Offerors MUST follow the instructions in the solicitation. 

Also note that a business case analysis is required whenever the Offeror does not propose to take the site to site closeout (SC) or ASC to support their rationale for the proposed end state. The business case analysis should be (a) semi-quantitative with reference to life cycle costs, rather than simply stating it is cost prohibitive (e.g. for landfills, Offeror is required to provide the estimated cost of exhumation); and (b) demonstrate achievement of SC during POP is cost prohibitive (e.g., exhuming a large landfill); or demonstrate SC is technically impracticable (e.g., contamination lies under an active facility or lies in a matrix that cannot be removed or treated). Accordingly, if additional action during the POP indicates SC is impracticable or provides little value, the business case should demonstrate this.

15.  When is it common sense to leave a site alone vs. capital cost to clean up?  How do we measure the best solution for the AF?

ANSWER:  The Air Force is looking to private industry to recommend when it is appropriate to leave a site alone vs. capital cost to clean up as part of their business case analysis.  
16. One thing AFCEE (also USACE) has made some progress with but we need to work on from both sides to improve is the government’s management approach.  The attitude the government takes toward managing PBRs have the old T&M mindset and the government is used to getting everything they want.  PBRs require a different mindset or it will make or break the PBR program.

ANSWER:  The use of this strategy, as with any acquisition strategy, does require that those involved in the Government and in the private sector understand the contract type and their roles under the contract.  AFCEE is currently working on post-award surveillance guidance for these efforts.  This said, industry should be familiar with working under a performance-based model, as well as under a FFP pricing arrangement, as this strategy and contract type have been around for many, many years.  

17. What is the rule on contractors having discussions with regulatory personnel?  Please state or restate/re-affirm whether these discussions are encouraged or discouraged.  The RFPs that have been issued, conflict with each other on whether we are allowed to do this or not. 

ANSWER:  Regulators will be invited by AFCEE to attend the site visits in an attempt to facilitate an exchange of information with potential Offerors, but this does not preclude Offerors from contacting regulators separately.  Once the task order has been awarded, discussions with regulatory personnel can only occur with approval of the Air Force first because the Air Force retains signature authority and liability. 

18. AFCEE did a good job putting a lot of base information out upfront for advance review.  There was sufficient time to review beforehand even 30 days in many cases.   The more time we have the better.

ANSWER:  AFCEE will continue this approach on the FY12 PBRs to the extent possible.

19. RFI process requires two week turnaround on the part of contractors.  AFCEE’s first question on the RFI is whether there is enough info to make a bid and there is a long list of documents to review.   Two weeks is insufficient time to review the amount of information to respond appropriately.  On the surface, for any PBR coming out, most small or large business could do the work or we wouldn’t have been awarded a WERC09 contract in the first place.  If there are 100 sites and there is no information about any sites and where they stand today (which have active remediation, which are closed to state standards but do not meet site closure) we don’t’ know unless we go through all the reports.  AFCEE does not provide a summary.  If a contractor has worked at a base in the past they have an advantage of knowing what they are getting into.  Providing a summary would be helpful.   Being told to “go look at website” and “go read it” is not helpful as you are only allowing two weeks to answer the RFI.

ANSWER:  Refer to the responses to #2 and #21.

20. Seems like the RFI process has resulted in surprise outcomes, especially if the large business are thinking certain bases will be full and open competition and they end up being small business set-asides.  Will AFCEE share how the RFI process works and how it affects the decision of full and open or small business set-aside competition?

ANSWER: The RFI process is used to conduct market research.  The results of the market research are used to determine whether requirement will be set aside for small business.

21. Will AFCEE add the presentations which are given during site visit to the RFI process?   This would provide good sense of requirement as overview summary.

ANSWER:  Yes, if available.  Site visits are usually held after the RFI process and slides are posted to the FTP site either right before or shortly after the site visit.

22. When AFCEE dumps all of the background information on a website and requires contractors to go through it all, it would help if the data were summarized.  It is difficult to give good answer on the level of risk.  Level of data requested is very expensive and will likely limit those that continue to submit proposals.

ANSWER:  AFCEE is evaluating ways to improve the FTP sites.  We appreciate the suggestion and we will consider it as we further enhance the utility of the websites.

23. What can AFCEE ask in the RFI?  If you were to poll small business and team members, most would have capability to perform so I don’t understand the benefit of the RFI.  RFI is most useful in telling industry what is coming and which sites to allow us to prep to start our proposals.

ANSWER:  The RFI is part of our market research.  Not all of the small businesses respond to the RFIs.  

24. A difficult thing is we get the RFIs and the presentations at conferences so have general idea of what is coming out but the timeframe of when they will come out is not clear.  We need a better idea of the month the RFI and RFP will be issued and size of the PBR.  We also need a summary of the sites.

ANSWER:  The Master Plan for PBRs planned between now and FY14/15 has been published at the following URL:

http://www.afcee.lackland.af.mil/contracting/WERC09/default.asp

· Scroll down to "Contractor and Contract Downloadable Information" Section
· Find "PBC Industry Day - July 28 2011" Title
· Pick “Era Program Overview” and “BRAC Program Overview”

25. The timeliness of the information and when it is shared is important.  AFCEE should post to the website as changes are made and industry can adjust to the schedule.

ANSWER:  Refer to the response to #2.   

26. If AFCEE already has the background data it should be released with the RFI.

ANSWER:  Refer to the response to #2.

27. I am speaking with a perspective from both large and small business as I previously worked with a large business and I now work with a small business.  I want to highlight cost to do these PBR proposals.  AFCEE PBRs are by far the most expensive of all.  The Army uses IAP as good summary of what is going on at the base.   When deciding to participate on a PBR, this is a very valuable to do a quick screen of whether they want to pursue it or not.  The RFI process is difficult to keep up with.  Laborious process and time consuming if AFCEE wants good info but using an IAP would help.  We need to get it down so it is a one hour response process.

ANSWER:  Refer to the response to #21.  

28. We have seen lots of PBRs from all agencies and how they have evolved.  The SOO is not part of the contract however when we write a scope it becomes part of the contract.   There is a lot of confusion on this. Are the SOO or the PWS a part of the contract?

ANSWER: Table 1 of the SOO will be amended prior to award to incorporate the successful Offeror’s proposed end state for sites.  The amended SOO serves as the statement of work (SOW) or performance work statement (PWS) equivalent.  In other words, all other portions of the SOO are constraints and non-negotiable.  Only the proposed end state is adjusted by the Contractor’s proposal.

29. On a recent PBR, the CO stated that any PWS assumptions would not be looked at as valid.  Is this correct?  

ANSWER:  This cannot be answered with the details provided.  As a general matter, assumptions provided by an Offeror support the technical approach and price proposed.  This information is used to determine completeness and reasonableness of the proposal during Government proposal evaluation.  Contractors are being asked to propose a firm fixed price for achievement of performance objectives.  Uncertainties should be considered within the approach and price proposed.

30. If AFCEE is going to wait to answer questions at an Industry Day forum until there is a break in solicitations, it could be a long time before questions are answered at a forum.  From here on out there will never a break in the solicitation process. 

ANSWER:  We will consider your input as we develop the PBR acquisition strategy for FY12. 

31. Does AFCEE see the driver for closed sites changing in light of debt issues?

ANSWER: No change is anticipated.  However, the use of Sub-CLIN options will allow for balancing of activities should there be limitations in available funding. The Air Force is developing a strategic plan that will be tailored along the Program Objective Memorandum (POM), and based upon historic savings realized by the AFRPA Base Realignment and Closure (BRAC) program.  It is anticipated that 20-30% savings will be realized by the Air Force ERP which will be reinvested back into the program. 
32. How each firm perceives an OCI may be different and the RFP is not clear on how AFCEE makes decision on OCI.  A firm could be putting a whole proposal together thinking there is no OCI issue.  Firms need an earlier decision on whether AFCEE believes there is an OCI rather than investment in proposal preparation.  AFCEE’s ability to waive OCI doesn’t create warm and fuzzy.  Sinking a lot of costs only to waive for someone else is not fair.  RFI process has in some cases raised teams with OCI but not lately on any PBRs.  

ANSWER: The goal is to address OCI issues at the RFI level based on information made available to the Government as well as a list of incumbent contractors and associated sites.

33. What are the definitions of SC, OES, RC & SQ?    During a Q&A session versus comments with the CO at a later date, there appears to be some confusion.  Definitions should not change with each individual task order.   Why do the BRAC side and the active side have different definitions for the same words?

ANSWER: Definitions will be provided in each Statement of Objectives and will govern that particular action. While intended to be the same throughout all PBRs, each solicitation must be carefully reviewed.  As a general matter, in order to have Remedy in Place (RIP) or Response Complete (RC), there must be a final Decision Document (i.e. interim actions without a DD do not equate to RIP or RC).  The determining factor of whether RIP or RC is achieved will depend upon whether remedial action objectives of the final DD have been met (e.g. a site with an in situ remedy that is underway but has not yet achieved maximum contaminant levels (MCLs) is considered RIP.  The determining factor of whether RC or SC has been achieved depends upon whether unrestricted use is achieved (e.g. a site with land use controls or institutional controls (LUCs/ICs) is the equivalent of RC, even if there is no long term monitoring requirements because those controls are necessary to ensure protectiveness).  

34. How do we handle situations when the state considers a site closed and now the AF definitions want us to reopen the site but the state has no way to go back?  How do contractors get paid if already closed in state’s mind?

ANSWER:  AFCEE has been providing presentations at regulatory Summits, conferences, Tier 1 & Tier 2 meetings, etc. to explain the PBR initiative.  These discussions are intended to raise awareness of the focus on accelerated site completion and identify ways to address circumstances where the State has currently closed sites but they have not achieved unrestricted use to satisfy the SC definition.  If contractors have a concern about a particular site in a PBR, it can be addressed at the site visit or after the RFI and draft SOO have been released.  Further, an Offeror should propose in accordance with the RFP requirements and objectives for that PBR effort.  If the RFP contains that site, an Offeror should propose to that site.  The Federal Government is paying, not the state. 

35. The Barksdale PBR recompete required 12 hard copies plus an electronic copy.  There are a lot of pages required for some of the attachments.   This is a huge cost.  Why does AFCEE require so many copies?

ANSWER:  Your concerns are noted and will be considered in the FY12 program.

36. Col Knippel’s presentation yesterday (26 July) was very useful.  Embedded in the presentation were follow on PBRs for several existing PBRs.  For example: FE Warren and Tyndall.  Also in several groupings there were bases that are presently under an existing procurement.  For example: Midwestern bases includes Holloman, Kirtland, and Cannon.  Yet they are also included in future PBRs.  Can this be cleared up?

ANSWER:  Although desirable, a single “fence-to-fence” PBR is not achievable in all cases.  Bases often have a variety of ongoing activities that may be in the best interest of the Government to finish on the current path before converting to a PBR.  Accordingly, more than one PBR may occur at a single base.  Follow-on PBRs will likely involve sites not included in an initial PBR, or may start from an end point of a prior contract.  There will also be bridge activities that may involve short duration activities (e.g. Remedial Action Operations or Long Term Management) for a period prior to the PBR.

37. Please eliminate PWS and RFP ambiguity.  For example:  “and/or”, “as directed”, “as needed”, “including but not limited to”, and “may be required”. 

ANSWER:  We appreciate the feedback and will consider this in upcoming PBRs.  Offerors always have the opportunity to ask questions about a perceived ambiguity in an RFP.  The question and our response will be posted for all Offerors to review.  

38. After proposals are submitted can the government provide timely updates concerning the status of the procurement process?  For example, 20 June – 12 proposals receive, cost range $20-$28M.  10 July - $20M submittal deemed not technically acceptable.  20 July – lpta submittal in legal review.  30 July – lpta submittal awaiting directors/COs signature approval.  8 Aug – director/co signs

ANSWER:  Selection sensitive and will not be released to protect the integrity of the process.  All questions concerning a project, after RFP release, must be directed to the contracting officer.  

39. For the WERC09 small businesses, how does AFCEE view use of WERC09 team members versus hiring subcontractors not on their team?  For many of the small business incumbents, the large businesses are shopping their participation to the best deal with a small business.

ANSWER: Firms are responsible for making a business decision on the best team to put forward for the opportunity presented.  Furthermore, many of the PBR efforts have been set-aside for small business.  We will continue to identify small business opportunities for the FY12 program. 

40.  Does the limitations of subcontracting clause apply at the task order level or the overall contract level?  Who is responsible for the enforcement/oversight of this clause?

ANSWER:  The limitation of subcontracting clause applies at the basic contract level.  Contracting officers at the task order level identify any concerns/issues.  The ACO is responsible for oversight of this clause. 

41. We want to underscore that the comments raised here apply to large business also and they are not limited to small business only. 

ANSWER:  Noted.

42. Non PBR – AFCEE gets DCAA audits on primes and all team members proposed.  It would save contractors time and money if it was not done on everyone.  AFCEE should consider doing this only on those short listed.  This would also aid DCAA as they would have fewer to review.  

ANSWER: Noted.


Important note: In EVERY CASE, potential Offerors MUST follow the instructions in the solicitation.
